
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

LICENSING ACT COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 21 JUNE 2012 

Venue: 
 

LANCASTER TOWN HALL 

Time: 2.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman  
 
3. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of meeting held on 22 March 2012 (previously circulated).    
  
4. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Chairman  
 
5. Declarations of Interest  
 
6. Chairmen of Licensing Act Sub-Committees (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 Report of the Licensing Manager   
  
7. Amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 by Part 2 of the Police Reform & Social 

Responsibility Act 2011 (Pages 3 - 7) 
 
 Report of the Licensing Manager   
  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 

 Councillors Paul Aitchison (Chairman), June Ashworth, Josh Bancroft, Chris Coates, 
Kathleen Graham, Mike Greenall, Helen Helme, Val Histed, Tracey Kennedy, 
Terrie Metcalfe, Margaret Pattison, Roger Sherlock, Joyce Taylor, Malcolm Thomas and 
Paul Woodruff 
 

(ii) Queries regarding this Agenda 
 

 Please contact Jane Glenton, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582068, or email 
jglenton@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iii) Changes to Membership or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone (01524) 582170, or email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 



 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Tuesday, 12 June 2012.   

 



 

 

LICENSING ACT COMMITTEE  
  
 

Chairmen of Licensing Act Sub-Committees 
 

21 June 2012 
 

Report of the Licensing Manager  
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To enable the Committee to make arrangements for the chairing of Licensing Act Sub-
Committees during the forthcoming municipal year. 
 

This report is public  

 
(1)  That the Committee appoints for the new municipal year a number of members 

to chair the ad hoc sub-committees established to hear individual applications 
under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005. 

 
1.0  Introduction 
 
1.1  The procedure for establishing sub-committees to deal with hearings under the 

Licensing Act 2003 was agreed at the Committee’s meeting on the 14th February 
2005.  As Members are aware, each sub-committee must comprise three members 
of the Committee, and is convened by the Head of Governance, as and when 
required, from the fifteen members. 

 
1.2  It was further agreed in 2005 that the then chairman and vice-chairman and three 

other named members be appointed as chairmen of the sub-committees, and that 
each ad hoc sub-committee would include one of these members who would act as 
the chairman. 
 

1.3  This arrangement has continued, although in some municipal years, the Committee 
has nominated four rather than five chairmen. 
 

1.4 For Members’ information, there were five chairmen nominated for 2011/12, namely 
Councillors Joyce Taylor, Helen Helme, Mike Greenall, Roger Sherlock and  
Malcolm Thomas, all of whom remain members of the Committee. 
 

1.5  It is always difficult to estimate in advance the workload of the sub-committees.  In 
2011/12, sub-committees met on seven occasions. 
 

2.0 Proposal Details 
 
2.1  The Committee is now requested to consider the arrangements for the municipal year 

2012/13, and to decide how many and which members to appoint to chair the sub-
committees. 

 
3.0  Details of Consultation 
 
3.1  None 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 1



4.0  Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1  There is a need for the Committee to appoint sub-committee chairmen.  Having four 

or five chairmen has worked well in previous years, but it is for the Committee to 
determine how many to appoint. 
 

5.0 Conclusion 
 
5.1  The Committee is recommended to appoint a number of its members to chair the 

sub-committee hearings. 
 

 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and 
Rural Proofing) 
None. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) last year made provision for special 
responsibility allowances to be paid to the Chairman and other Licensing Act Sub-Committee 
Chairmen. The IRP’s calculations were based on the Committee Chairman and two other 
Sub-Committee Chairmen receiving allowances. Dependent upon the number of Sub-
Committee Chairmen appointed, there could be up to four allowances paid (at £435 each) 
and this could be met from within the Members’ Allowances budget. However, the fact that a 
Member is only entitled to receive one special responsibility allowance means that there is 
leeway within the budgetary provision. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The proposal is in accordance with the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003, which provides 
for the establishment of one or more sub-committees consisting of three members of the 
Committee, but makes no further provision as to how this should be arranged. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Ms W Peck 
Telephone:  01524 582317 
E-mail: wpeck@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: WP 

 

Page 2



LICENSING ACT COMMITTEE  
 
  

Amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 by Part 2 of the  
Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act 2011 

 
21 June 2012 

 
Report of the Licensing Manager  

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report is to inform Members of recent changes to the Licensing Act 2003 and to take the 
necessary action to implement these changes. 
 
This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1. That delegated authority is granted to the Head of Governance to act on 

behalf of the Licensing Authority as Responsible Authority when 
required under the Licensing Act 2003, and that the Head of 
Governance, as Monitoring Officer, is authorised to amend the 
Constitution accordingly. 

 
2. That delegated authority is granted to the Head of Governance to 

suspend Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates for non-
payment of annual fees in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003, and 
that the Head of Governance, as Monitoring Officer, is authorised to 
amend the Constitution accordingly. 

 
3. That the remaining content of this report is noted. 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Members will be aware that from July to September 2010 the Home Office 

conducted a public consultation exercise on ‘Rebalancing the Licensing Act 
2003’ (the Act). The proposals outlined in the consultation were 
implemented by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the 
PRSR Act), which received Royal Assent on 15 September 2011. 

 
1.2 Amended statutory guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act (the 

Guidance) and most of the reforms contained in the PRSR Act were brought 
into force on the 25 April 2012. However, some reforms remain outstanding 
as these require complex secondary legislation (i.e. early morning alcohol 
restriction orders (EMROs), the late night levy and the ability to set licence 

Agenda Item 7Page 3



fees locally). The Government aims to introduce these measures in October 
2012 or April 2013 and will be the subject of future reports. 

 
2.0   REFORMS WHICH CAME INTO FORCE ON 25TH APRIL 2012 
 
2.1  Licensing Authorities to act as Responsible Authorities:  

The intention of Government is to give Licensing Authorities (LA) more 
power and flexibility, and as such, has given them Responsible Authority 
(RA) status under the Act. This allows the LA to make representations and 
call for reviews in its own right, thereby enabling it to make early 
interventions to premises that are causing problems without having to wait 
for other RAs. (However, it should be noted that this approach is not 
intended to remove or replace the responsibility from existing RAs and the 
LA is still bound by the same rules of evidence that apply to all RAs).  

 
 This change creates two roles within the Council when acting as LA under 

the Act, i.e. the role of decision making body and the role of RA. To ensure 
procedural fairness and avoid conflicts of interest, the Guidance stresses the 
need for clear separation between these two roles when determining 
applications.  

 
Current hearing procedures preserve this separation in part. The role of 
decision making body is carried out by the Licensing Act 2003 Sub-
Committee and is kept separate from Licensing Officers as the Sub-
Committee determines all applications in private (supported only by a Legal 
Officer and a Democratic Services Officer who have no involvement in the 
application process). However, to ensure compliance with the Guidance, the 
Sub-Committee (and therefore the full Committee from which Sub-
Committees are sourced) cannot also act as RA. Therefore, given that 
Licensing Officers are separate from the decision making process and that 
they have an in depth understanding of the issues presented by the Act, 
they are most suited to represent the LA in its role as RA. Therefore, if there 
is an issue, Licensing Officers would initially liaise with applicants and would 
submit representations to the Sub-Committee as required. Similarly, 
Licensing Officers would instigate review proceedings on behalf of the LA in 
its role as RA.  

 
To allow Licensing Officers to fulfil the role of RA, delegated authority is 
requested to enable the Head of Governance to act formally on behalf of the 
LA as RA when required under the Act. 
 

2.2 Non payment of annual fees 
 
Members will be aware that the Act gave no direct power to LAs to take 
action against licences where there were outstanding Premises Licence and 
Club Premises Certificate annual fees. LAs were only able to pursue 
outstanding fees as a debt. The reforms seek to address this issue by 
granting LAs the power to suspend a Premises Licence or Club Premises 
Certificate if the annual fee is not paid when it is due.  Guidance issued 
under the Act states that the Licence or Club Premises Certificate should be 
suspended if the fee is not paid. 

 

Page 4



Once a Licence or Certificate is suspended, licensable activities cannot take 
place until the outstanding fee has been paid. Where the annual fee for a 
Licence or Certificate has not been paid for more than one year, the 
outstanding fee in relation to each year will be required to reinstate the 
Licence or Certificate. However, it should be noted that the suspension of a 
Licence or Certificate does not prevent the submission of a transfer 
application or the calling of a hearing. 

 
To enable Officers to administer this new provision, delegated authority is 
requested to the Head of Governance to suspend Premises Licences and 
Club Premises Certificates for non-payment of annual fees in accordance 
with the Act. 

 
2.3 Changes to Temporary Event Notices (TENs) 
 

Two types of TENs have been created by the reforms – “Standard” and 
“Late”. Whilst the legislation stipulates several limitations on the number of 
TENs that can be served in any one year, by any one person in any given 
location - the maximum length of time a TEN may have effect has been 
increased from 96 hours (or 4 days) to 168 hours (or 7 days).  

 
The requirements for a Standard TEN are no different to those prior to the 
reforms. However, Late TENs can be submitted to the Council between nine 
and five working days before an event. Therefore, Late TENs are intended to 
be used only in exceptional circumstances – for example, when 
circumstances arise beyond the organiser’s control that requires an aspect of 
the event to be changed at short notice.  

 
In a similar manner to Standard TENs, the Police and the Council’s Health 
and Housing Section have three working days from receipt of the Late Ten to 
object on the basis of any of the Licensing Objectives.  However, if there is an 
objection from either service, the event will not go ahead.  Under the 
provisions for a Late TEN, there is no scope for a hearing or the application of 
existing conditions. 
 
If an objection is received in relation to a standard TEN the licensing authority 
must set up a hearing before a sub committee to consider the representation 
with 7 days of the last day a representation can be submitted.  The sub 
committee can apply conditions to a TEN, moderate the notice or stop the 
event from taking place.  Conditions and moderations of the notice can be 
agreed between all parties without the need for a hearing. 

 
2.4 Lowering evidential thresholds 
 

The Act has been amended in an attempt to reduce the evidential burden on 
LAs when making decisions. Therefore, any action the Licensing Act 2003 
Sub-Committee may take is now required to be “appropriate” rather than 
“necessary” for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.   

 
2.5 Removing the ‘vicinity test’ and publicity of applications 
 

Under the previous controls, only residents who lived within the “vicinity” of a 
premises could make representations about an application related to that 
premises. This definition has been amended so that anyone can make a 

Page 5



representation regardless of whether they live close to the premises 
concerned. However, the tests of “frivolous”, “vexatious” or “irrelevant” still 
exist to control potentially unnecessary representations.  

 
The Council is also required to publish details of all applications and reviews 
on its website during the prescribed consultation period of 28 days.  

 
2.6 Health Bodies as Responsible Authorities 
 

All Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) have been given RA status under the reforms. 
Accordingly, NHS Central Lancashire will be automatically notified of 
applications and can make representations to the Council. It is the 
Government’s intention that PCTs can provide additional information that may 
be of use to LAs when making decisions. For example, information relating to 
drunkenness that has lead to accidents and/or injuries from violence, which 
required the need for emergency and ambulance services, so long as this 
information relates to specific premises.  

 
When the relevant provisions in the new Health and Social Care Act 2012 are 
brought into force, PCTs will be replaced as RAs by the Public Health function 
of the relevant local authority. 

 
2.7 Licensing Policies 
 

The frequency that the Council is required to review and publish its Licensing 
Policy has been changed from 3 to 5 years. Lancaster City Council last 
reviewed its Licensing Policy in January 2011. 

 
2.8 Sales of alcohol to children 

 
The maximum fine for the offence of selling alcohol to children has been 
doubled to £20,000. The Government has also changed the process by which 
businesses that have been found guilty of this offence can be shut down 
(voluntarily or involuntarily). 

  
2.9 Relevant offences 

 
The list of relevant offences has been extended to include criminal attempt 
and conspiracy offences. This increases the number of offences that can be 
taken into account by the Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee when 
determining a new Personal Licence and, in the event of convictions during 
the period of licence, the suspension and forfeiture of these Licences.  

 
3.0     CONCLUSION 
 

In summary Recent changes to the Licensing Act 2003 which came into effect 
in April   2012 enable some greater scope for representations to be made at 
the licensing application stage and suspend licences where fee payment is 
not received. It is appropriate that delegated authority be given to the Head of 
Governance to exercise these powers. 

 
Additional changes relate to process and Members are requested to note 
these changes. 

 

Page 6



CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and 
Rural Proofing) 
 

None. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

Contained in the report 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 

Contact Officer: Ms W Peck 
Telephone:  01524 582317 
E-mail: wpeck@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: WP 

 

Page 7


	Agenda
	6 Chairmen of Licensing Act Sub-Committees
	7 Amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 by Part 2 of the Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act 2011

